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67.  C.0.2  Uniforms C-3 Will DOE provide uniform requirements? The contractor purchases all uniform requirements including but not limited to 

clothing for all climates; as well as holsters, pouches, body armor, helmets, boots, 

running shoes, rain suits, slings, backpacks, hydration pouches, snake chaps, 
goggles, face hoods, pocket tools, knives, and protective and safety gear.  Items 

purchased through a cost type contract become government property. 

68.  C.0.4 Transition Plan C-5 RFP indicates the contractor shall be subject to a DOE 
S&S initial survey during the transition period and must 

receive a satisfactory rating, prior to the start of work. 

Since the incumbent owns the contract until the first 
effective day of the new contract, and an initial survey is a 

survey of the facility, can you please describe how the 

initial survey is to be conducted.   

The S&S initial survey will be conducted in accordance with U.S. DOE Order 
470.4B, Chg 2 (MinChg), Safeguards and Security Program.   The Initial Safeguards 

and Security Survey shall include but is not limited to the following:  Verify that the 

incoming Protective Force (PF) contractor is prepared to execute the PF mission at 
SRS in compliance with DOE and federal Safeguards and Security requirements; 

ensure the incoming contractor employs a formal protocol to review, accept, and/or 

modify as required the existing PF program; participate in interactions between the 
incoming contractor’s transition teams and the incumbent contractor, including 

participation in briefings, facility walk downs, interviews, and document reviews; 

evaluate whether information briefed and exchanged between incumbent and 
incoming contractor is sufficient to ensure that roles, responsibilities, and 

accountabilities are clearly communicated and understood; evaluate key lines of 

inquiry to ensure the incoming contractor understands their roles and responsibilities 
with regard to providing PF services at SRS based on the following: 

 Process for the review and acceptance/rejection of incumbent company level 

plans, procedures, policies, and permits. 

 Key management personnel are knowledgeable of their responsibilities 

 Lines of authority are clearly communicated  

 Newly appointed personnel possess the necessary training and/or qualifications 

 Resources are available to execute security plans 

 Contractor Assurance Programs are employed in the area of S&S (including self-

assessment programs and issues management programs 

 Facility walk-downs are conducted to ascertain the condition of the buildings, 

facilities and equipment to be turned over.   

 Service Level Agreements, Memoranda of Agreement/Understanding and various 

emergency preparedness/management plans, particularly those with Local Law 
Enforcement Agencies and with other SRS contractors, are reviewed for 

acceptance/modification.   

 Physical inventory of government property is conducted 

69.  C.1 Perimeter Protection Page C-7 Can DOE please provide what the peak populations are 

during the day shifts and the non-peak populations, for 
example during the weekends? 

There is a population of approximately 12,000 during peak day, and approximately 

20% of the peak population during off shifts. 

70.  C.1 Perimeter Protection Page C-7 Can DOE please provide information on the number of 

vehicle inspections performed at the perimeter barricades 

during week days and on weekends? 

90,390 inspections were performed in 2018.  There are no figures for the number of 

inspections performed at perimeter barricades during weekday and weekend.   

71.  C.1 Perimeter Protection Page C-7 Can DOE please provide information on the number of 

commercial truck inspections that are performed at the 

perimeter barricades during week days and on weekends? 

This data is not available.  

72.  C.1 Protective Force   How many mutual aid calls are performed by SRS security 
personnel on a monthly/annual basis? 

Mutual aid calls are performed by LE Constables only.  PF security personnel are 
not authorized to perform duties off site.  Aid calls fluctuate on an as needed basis.  

73.  C.1 Protective Force C-6 How many protective force vehicles are in the fleet and 

which contractor (M&O or Security) is responsible for 

The Master Property List that was added to the Documents Library on the 

Acquisition Website contains a list of vehicles.  GSA vehicles currently have 
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performing the maintenance on those vehicles, for 

example, the bearcats?   

maintenance performed by security the contractor through a mutual agreement 

between the security contractor and GSA. All non-GSA vehicle maintenance will be 

the responsibility of the security contractor.   

74.  C.1 Protective Force C-7 Are all vehicles GSA provided vehicles or are specialty 

vehicles procured by the protective force contractor? 

GSA vehicles are procured through the DOE-SR Fleet Management office. Non-

GSA vehicles procured by the contractor become Government Furnished Property.  

75.  C.1 Protective Force C-6 

What are the incident command responsibilities of 

protective force versus the fire department, EMS, and the 
M&O contractor? 

 During security events, the ranking PF supervisor or designee assumes incident 

command responsibilities as the Incident Commander, and the ranking M&O Fire 
Department officer assumes the role of “Section Chief” (National Incident 

Management System [NIMS]). For operational emergencies (hazardous material, 

fires, medical emergencies) the ranking M&O Fire Department officer assumes the 
role of Incident Commander, and the ranking PF supervisor designee assumes the 

role of “Section Chief” (NIMS).  For wild land fires on the general plant site, the 

ranking US Forest Service officer assumes the role of Incident Commander. 
Depending upon the emergency categorization, the senior PF responder and FD 

responder may form a Unified Incident Command under the provisions of the NIMS 

Incident Command System (ICS). See DOE O 151.1D Comprehensive Emergency 
Management System. 

76.  C.1 Protective Force C-6 During the tour and reviewing the RFP there is no mention 

of manned posts for the F and H tank farm areas. Are we 
correct in assuming that there are no manned posts 

associated with these areas? 

There are no manned PF posts in F and H tank farms. LE performs random 

inspections in the areas.  

77.  C.1.2 CAS operators C-9 Section C, Page C-9, Item C.1.2, Are the CAS operators 

required to be certified by any outside credentialing 
group? 

CAS operators are not required to be certified by any outside credentialing group. 

78.  C.1.3 Law Enforcement - 

River Patrol 

C-9 Section C, Page C-9, Item C.1.3 second bullet, Are the 

river patrol vessels government furnished property or 
contractor furnished property? 

River patrol vessels are considered Government Furnished Property. 

79.  C.1.3 Law Enforcement - 

River Patrol 

C-9 Can DOE please provide information on what the 

maritime assets are? 

The maritime assets consist of two (2) twenty foot Jon boats with outboard motors.  

80.  C.1.3 Law Enforcement - 
River Patrol 

C-9 
How often are the maritime assets used? 

This number is not available.  LE river patrols are conducted on random basis. 

81.  C.1.3 Law Enforcement - 

River Patrol 

C-9 Are the maritime assets US Coast Guard inspected and 

approved? 

No, the maritime assets are not US Coast Guard inspected. 

82.  C.1.3 Law Enforcement - 
River Patrol 

C-9 What are the qualifications necessary for the maritime 
operators? 

The operators are required to take a Site Specific Boat Operations Lesson Plan, a 
Boater Safety Course and required to have a valid state drivers license. 

83.  C.1.3 Law Enforcement - 

River Patrol 

C-9 Are the maritime operators currently covered under the 

Jones Act insurance requirements? 

No, maritime operators are not covered under the Jones Act insurance requirements. 

84.  C.1.3 Law Enforcement - 

River Patrol 

C-9 How often do the operators interact with the US Coast 

Guard? 

Operators do not interact with the US Coast Guard on a regular basis.    

85.  C.1.3 Law Enforcement C-9 How many SRS law enforcement visits are performed 

monthly/annually at off-site locations? 

This number is not available.  Weekly performance of duties by LE fluctuates on a 

monthly and annual basis. For example, Magistrate Court appearances, transporting 
violating offenders to county detention centers, requests for canine 

narcotics/explosive detection, etc.  

86.  C.1.3.2 Canine Operations C-10 Can DOE specify if the Contractor is responsible for 

providing dog food, medication, grooming/care, 
vet/medical services etc. services? 

The contractor purchases all supplies for canine maintenance including but not 

limited to dog food, medication, grooming/care, carriers & portable kennels, 
specialized vet/medical services, leashes, etc.  DOE-SR provides routine veterinary 

care through the DOD (Army Vet) at Fort Gordon. 
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87.  C.1.3.2 Canine Operations C-10 Can DOE specify if the contractor is responsible for 

providing training aids for canine training and 

certification? 

The contractor purchases all training aids and supplies necessary for canine training 

and certification.  Items purchased become government property. 

 

88.  C.1.3.2 Canine Operations C-10 Section C.1.3.1 states, " The Contractor shall be 

responsible for canine operations consisting of Certified 

Class 1 LE Officer Canine handlers." This implies that the 
canines will be provided by the government. Is our 

intrepretation correct? Will the government provide the 

PSS contractor with canines? If so, will the canines come 
already imprinted or will contractors have to imprint the 

canines? 

Current canines are Government Furnished Property and will be assigned to the 

contractor. Future canine needs will be procured by the contractor and become 

Government Furnished Property. Current canines are imprinted. Future canines will 
be imprinted by the vendor prior to procurement. Ongoing training shall be provided 

by the contractor.  

89.  C.1.3.2 Canine Operations C-10 How many internal operations calls do the canine team(s) 

respond to on a monthly/annual basis? 

There are up to 12 authorized canine teams that conduct inspections daily 

throughout the site.   

90.  C.1.3.2 Canine Operations  Can DOE specify is the Contractor is responsible for 

providing dog food, medication, grooming/care, medical 

services etc. services? 

See responses to #86, #87 and #88 

91.  C.1.3.2 Canine Operations  Can DOE specify if the contractor is responsible for 
providing training aids for canine training and 

certification? 

See responses to #86, #87 and #88 

92.  C.1.3.2 Canine Operations  Can DOE specify who is responsible for providing kennel 
maintenance and repair? 

The M&O performs kennel maintenance and repair 

93.  C.1.5.4 Aviation Operations C-12 Section C, Page C-12, Item C.1.5.4, third paragraph, last 

sentence states: “The Contractor shall not delegate its 
responsibility for any 14 CFR Part 135.25 operational 

control functions and/or its responsibility to maintain 

operational control over flight activities.” Can DOE please 
define its meaning of “responsibility” Is this statement 

intended to mean that the offeror can have a subcontractor 

performing this scope as long as the offeror maintains the 
responsibility over the scope and the subcontractor? 

Aviation Operations (pilots) shall not be subcontracted.  DOE will amend H.56 of 

the RFP to clarify what portions of the scope cannot be subcontracted.      

94.  C.1.5.4 Aviation Operations C-12 Section C, page C-12, Item C.1.5.4, Regarding aviation 

operations: 

a. Can DOE please provide the make and model of each 
aircraft? 

b. Can DOE please provide the hours of flight for each 

aircraft? 
c. Can DOE please provide the historical repair and 

maintenance costs for each aircraft? 

d. Can DOE please provide an inventory list of supplies 

for operations? 

The helicopters are both Messerschmitt-Bölkow-Blohm (MBB)/Kawasaki BK 117, 

twin-engine medium utility – transport helicopters.) MBB was later purchased by 

Daimler-Benz and eventually became a part of Eurocopter, which was later 
rebranded as Airbus Helicopters. 

 

Each helicopter averages 300 flight hours per year. 
 

Additional cost detail for non-labor costs was provided in Attachment L-11. 

 

An redacted inventory list of supplies for operations has been included in the 

Documents Library on the acquisition website. 

95.  C.1.5.4 Aviation Operations C-12 What is the annual amount of aviation duty hours? See answer to #94.  Attachment L-7 provides the annual hours for Pilots. 

96.  C.1.5.4 Aviation Operations C-12 
What is the annual amount of aviation maintenance hours? 

See answer #91 concerning flight hours.  3 full time FTEs are currently assigned to 
aviation maintenance. 

97.  C.1.5.4 Aviation Operations C-12 Is there any mutual aid or cooperative agreement with 

NPP Vogtle that the subcontractor needs to be prepared 
for? 

The current security contractor has no mutual agreements with NPP Vogtle under 

the SRS Security contract. 
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98.  C.1.5.4 Aviation Operations C-12 How often are medical aviation evacuations performed 

from the site, and are medical personnel always on-board? 

Are any of the SPOs EMT certified? 

Medical aviation evacuations have occurred in the past approximately 6 times a year 

on average, however this number fluctuates annually. M&O Medical personnel are 

always on-board during medical evacuations. SPOs are not EMT certified.  

99.  C.1.5.4 Aviation Operations C-12 Is the site part of a protection agreement with NORAD, 

and if so, how do the aviation assets coordinate with them? 

SRS is not part of a protection agreement with NORAD. 

100.  C.1.5.4 Aviation Operations C-12 Regarding question #99 above, who on the Protective 

Force is responsible for that coordination?  And is that a 
prescribed position? 

See answer to #99. 

101.  C.1.6 HAZMAT 

Commercial Driver’s 
License (CDL) 

C-13 Section C, Page C-13, Item C.1.6: 

a. How often is material transported within the site each 
year? 

b. How often outside the site? 

c. How many contractor personnel are required to have a 
HAZMAT Commercial Driver’s License? 

d. Are these personnel in addition to the two prescribed 

positions listed in Table L.1., page L-32? If so, which 
positions listed elsewhere in Table L.1 have this 

credential? 

Nuclear material shipment information is not releasable to the public. 

 
There is no minimum requirement for personnel possessing HAZMAT CDLs. In 

addition to SNM, HAZMAT CDLs are required for transportation of canine training 

aids 

102.  C.1.6 Material 

Transportation 
Security and 

Coordination 

C-13 DOE is committed to shipping one metric ton per year of 

plutonium from SRS to comply with legislative 
requirements. Is there a requirement for additional 

protective force transportation coordination/assets to meet 

these commitments? 

No additional protective force transportation assets will be required. 

103.  C.1.6 Material 

Transportation 

Security and 
Coordination 

C-13 
Do the new projects associated with the Tritium 

Responsive Infrastructure program add to future 

requirements in this contract? 

No, the new projects with the Tritium Responsive Infrastructure program do not add 

to the future requirements. 

104.  C.1.6 Material 

Transportation 
Security and 

Coordination 

C-13 The NNSA has announced that the Tritium Extraction 

Facility will be increasing the number of extractions of 
Tritium Burning Absorber Rods. What is the planned 

increase in shipment activity? 

The shipment schedule associated with the increased production of tritium is not 

releasable to the public.  See response to #103.  

105.  C.1.7.1 Training, Force 

Requirements 

C-14 Section C, Page C-14-15, Item C.1.7.1 (Training) Force 

Requirements, states: “In addition, the Contractor shall 
comply with the Nuclear Regulatory Commission security 

requirements contained in 10 CFR 73, Physical Protection 

of Plants and Materials to safeguard the Mixed Oxide Fuel 
Fabrication Facility (MFFF) should that facility become 

operational.” Now that the decision has been made to 

change the mission of this facility to pit production 

potentially, has the security posture on this facility 

changed materially, or will it change during facility 

reconfiguration, or if the facility becomes operational 
during this contract cycle, which will affect our technical 

approach and cost estimates? If so, can DOE please share 

the changes? 

The MFFF is located in a Property Protection Area and regardless of mission state 

continues to be protected by the security contractor as such.  Any new mission 
resulting in the repurposing of the MFFF may result in a contract modification in the 

future. 

 
Attachment L-8 of the RFP states “It is anticipated that the security posture 

(Property Protection Area) for the Mixed Fuel Fabrication Facility 

will remain unchanged during the contract period.” 

 

Offeror’s should use this assumption when preparing their proposals. 

 

106.  C.1.7.1 Training C-14 Section C, Page 14-15, Item C.1.7.1 (Training), Can DOE 

confirm that the NRC 10CFR 73 training requirement is 

The NRC 10 CFR 73 training requirement is no longer necessary.  DOE will amend 

the RFP to remove the NRC 10 CFR 73 training requirement. 
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no longer necessary now that the MOX will not be 

operational as such? 

107.  C.2.1.3 DOE HRP Program 
Support 

C-18 What is the required census of HRP-qualified personnel 
that are supported by this contract?   

This information cannot be released to the public. For proposal preparation 
purposes, the offeror shall assume that all PF personnel are HRP qualified. DOE 

will amend the RFP to include this assumption in attachment L-8. 

108.  C.3 Information Resource 

Management and 
Cyber Security 

Services 

C-19 In order to determine the staffing and costs for cyber 

security can the government provide additional 
information on the protective force legacy and current 

applications specifically: number of systems, software 

basis and accreditation level? 

There are approximately 600 systems that primarily consist of Microsoft Windows 

operating systems utilizing standard business applications and database applications.  
The accreditation level is moderate. 

109.  C.3 Technical 

Surveillance 

Countermeasures 
Officer 

C-20 Section C, page C-20, Item C.3 last paragraph, Is the 

Technical Surveillance Countermeasures Officer 

(TSCMO) only for Information Resource Management 
and Cyber Security or is the TSCMO required to apply the 

TSCM to the entire site? 

The Security Contractor’s TSCMO supports the security contract at all security 

contractor areas of responsibility. 

 

 

110.  C.3 Technical 

Surveillance 
Countermeasures 

C-19, C-20 The PWS specifies that "The Contractor shall provide a 

properly trained and qualified individual to serve as a 
Technical Surveillance Countermeasures Officer 

(TSCMO) and administer a Technical Surveillance 

Countermeasures (TSCM) program in accordance with 
applicable DOE requirements." Will DOE please define 

"properly trained and qualified" as inclusive or exclusive 

of TSCM technician certification in accordance with DOE 
470.6 and completion of the Interagency Training Center 

(ITC) TSCM Fundamentals Course?   

DOE will amend the RFP to clarify Section C.3 qualification requirements for the 

TSCMO. 
 

 

111.  C.4.2 Quality Assurance C-21 Will DOE provide a copy of the incumbent QA 
Program/Plan? 

A copy of the QA Program/Plan will not be provided.  Offeror’s should consult 
DOE G 414.1-2B, Chg 2 to develop and implement an effective Quality Assurance 

Program (QAP) consistent with the Department’s quality expectations of the Quality 

Assurance (QA) Order, DOE Order (O) 414.1D, Quality Assurance, dated 4-25-11, 
and 10 C.F.R. Part 830 Subpart A, Quality Assurance Requirements, and that 

supports DOE Policy (P) 450.4A, Integrated Safety Management Policy, dated 4-25-

11. 

112.  C.4.4 Equipment 

Maintenance 

C-22 Section C, Page C-22, Item C.4.4, Can DOE please 

provide a current list of all equipment noted in this section, 

with approximate age and condition of said equipment so 
that offerors can accurately project staffing required to 

maintain the equipment? 

A redacted version of the Master Property List has been added to the Documents 

Library on the SRS Security Acquisition Website.  The age and condition of these 

items will not be provided due to security reasons. 

113.  C.4.11 Interfaces with Site 

Users 

C-25 Will DOE please provide the Interface Management Plan? The DOE-SR Interface Management Plan has been added to the Documents Library. 

114.  H.37 Government 

Furnished Property 

H-58 Based on Section L-11 Labor Rates, FTEs and Other Cost 

Information, “Other Costs” tab historical data Contractors 

are responsible for GSA vehicle lease but section  H.37 
DOE-H-2055 GOVERNMENT FURNISHED 

PROPERTY (OCT 2014) (REVISED) is stating that 

government will provide vehicles.  Can DOE specify how 
many GSA leased vehicles are required to be provided by 

the contractor? 

A redacted version of the Master Property List has been added to the Documents 

Library on the SRS Security Acquisition Website.  DOE leases site vehicles through 

an agreement with GSA.  The vehicles are provided by GSA to DOE and managed 
by the DOE-SR Fleet Management Office.  DOE provides the contractor with the 

requested GSA leased vehicles as GFP.  The contractor pays for their GSA leased 

vehicles through DOE under the security contract.   
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115.  H.37 Government 

Furnished Property 

H-58 Based on Section L-11 Labor Rates, FTEs and Other Cost 

Information, “Other Costs” tab historical data Contractors 

are responsible for providing Body Armor but section  
H.37 DOE-H-2055 GOVERNMENT FURNISHED 

PROPERTY (OCT 2014) (REVISED) is stating that 

government will provide body armor.  Can DOE clarify 
who is responsible for providing Body Armor? 

The contractor purchases all body armor needs including carrier.  Items purchased 

through a cost type contract become government property. 

116.  H.37 Government 

Furnished Property 

H-58 Based on Section L-11 Labor Rates, FTEs and Other Cost 

Information, “Other Costs” tab historical data Contractors 
are responsible for  providing Ammunition  but section  

H.37 DOE-H-2055 GOVERNMENT FURNISHED 

PROPERTY (OCT 2014) (REVISED) is stating that 
government will provide ammunition.  Can DOE clarify 

who is responsible for providing ammunition? 

The contractor purchases all commercial ammunition.  DOE-SR purchases non-

commercial military ammunition requirements upon request of the contractor. 

117.  H.37 Government 

Furnished Property 

H-58 Can DOE specify who is responsible for providing 

maintenance and repair materials, replacements parts etc. 
for servicing government provided equipment? 

The contractor purchases all supplies/parts necessary and provides necessary, 

qualified personnel to maintain all DOE owned equipment assigned, including but 
not limited to vehicles, weapons, communication equipment, tactical equipment, 

training equipment, ranges, helicopters, physical fitness equipment (gyms), etc. 

 

118.  H.37 Government 

Furnished Property 

H-58 Can DOE specify how many GSA leased vehicles are 

required to be provided by the contractor? 

See responses to #73, #74 and #114 

119.  H.37 Government 

Furnished Property 

H-58 Can DOE clarify who is responsible for providing Body 

Armor? 

See response to #67 and #115 

120.  H.37 Government 

Furnished Property 

H-58 Can DOE clarify who is responsible for providing 

ammunition? 

See response to #116 

121.  H.37 Government 
Furnished Property 

H-58 Can DOE specify who is responsible for providing 
maintenance and repair materials, replacements parts etc. 

for servicing government provided equipment? 

See responses to #117 and #129 

122.  Attachment J-1 Directives J-1-6 To what software does DOE apply DOE G 414.1-4A 

(Guide, 06/17/2005)  Quality Assurance Management 
System Guide for Use with 10 CFR 830 Subpart A, 

Quality Assurance Requirements, and DOE O 414.1C, 

Quality Assurance?  

DOE G 414.1-4A does not apply to any software currently.  DOE will amend the RFP 

to remove this requirement. 
 

123.  L.21 Page Limitations  The instructions in L.21 define page limitations for L-3, L-

5, L-12, and L-13. However, page limitations are not 

defined for the L.21(c) Newly formed entity and 
predecessor companies, L.21(e) Contracts information, 

L.21(i) Sources of past performance information/close at 

hand information, and L.21.(k) Past Performance Consent 

Statement. Is it the Government’s intent to make these 

items not page limited?  If the answer to question 1 is no, 

please advise the additional pages we may use for each 
requirement. 

DOE will amend Attachment L-3 and L.21(e)(2) of the RFP to clarify where this 

information should be located and page limitations.  L.21(i) does not have a 

submittal requirement.   

124.  L.21(e)(2) Past Performance  Section L.21(e)(2) Proposal Preparation Instructions, 

Volume II - Past Performance (Oct 2015) states, "In 

addition, the offeror may describe any recognized 
accomplishments the offeror has received on the reference 

contract.".  Form L-3 does not clearly identify in its 

DOE will amend Attachment L-3 of the RFP to include a block to provide this 

information. 
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instructions which block of the form this information 

should be included. Please clarify where offerors should 

include this information. 

125.  L.21(e)(2) Past Performance  Form L-3 does not clearly identify in its instructions which 

block of the form DOE enforcement actions and/or worker 

safety and health, nuclear safety, and/or classified 
information security incidents or notifications posted to 

the DOE Office of Enterprise Assessments website 

(https://energy.gov/ea/information-center/enforcement-
infocenter) should be included. Please clarify where 

offerors should include this information.   

DOE will amend Attachment L-3 of the RFP to include a block to provide this 

information. 

126.  L.21(e)(2) Past Performance  Are corrective actions explanations included in the Form 

L-3 page limitation of 7 pages? 

DOE will amend Attachment L-3 and L.21(e)(2) of the RFP to clarify where this 

information should be located. 

127.  L.22(h)(6) Additional Details for 

Other Than Direct 

Labor Costs 

L-35 Section L.22 (h)(6), Additional Details for Other than 

Direct Labor Costs, states, “The offeror shall provide a 

consolidated schedule(s) of non-labor costs (including 
materials, equipment, other direct costs, travel, etc.) which 

contains descriptions, quantities, unit pricing and total 

pricing using the templates provided in Section L, 
Attachment L-7 reconciling to the total proposed amounts 

for each cost element, as included Section L, Attachment 

L-6.” Amendment 0001 added, “For informational 
purposes, historical FY 2019 Other than Direct Labor 

Costs have been provided in Attachment L-11, Labor 

Rates, FTEs, and Other Cost Info, on the “Other Costs” 

tab”. 

The historical information provided in Attachment L-11 is 

insufficient to provide descriptions, quantities, and unit 
pricing for travel, equipment, material, and other direct 

costs for this contract. For example:  

• Travel, “Some Protective Force Training” – we need 
type of training, number of students, provider of the 

training and location. 

• Equipment, “Locksmith Equipment and Supplies” – we 
need the types and brand of the locks and the quantities of 

each.  

• Materials, “Respiratory Protection (Mask Filters) – we 
need the type of hazards and annual usage rate for each 

type of filter required 

• Other Direct Costs, “Helicopter Parts, Fuel, Supplies and 
Outside Maintenance” – we need the year and model of 

the helicopters, their maintenance requirements and 

histories (e.g., OEM maintenance manuals and schedules 
and maintenance logs), certification records, and hours 

flown in order to provide annual estimates. 

We understand this level of detail cannot be provided for 
many of the items on the list such as weapons and 

accessories. 

DOE will amend Attachment L-11 of the RFP to include more detail for non-labor 

costs.   The provided non-labor amounts are provided for informational purposes. 

The Offeror’s technical approach will determine the amounts to be proposed in these 
areas. 

 

Travel: Approximately 90% of all training is conducted at SRS.  Number of students 
traveling to various DOE sites and/or locations across the country when courses are 

not readily available varies from year to year. 

 
Locksmith Equipment and supplies:  Refer to DOE O 473.3A, Chg 1 Attachment 3, 

Section A, pages 308-311.  GSA authorized Federal Specification FF-L-2740B, 

Locks, Combination, Electromechanical.  GSA authorized Federal Specification FF-

L 2937, Combination Locks, Mechanical.  DoD authorized specification MIL-DTL-

43607J, Padlock, Key Operated, High Security, Shrouded Shackle  

Sargent and Greenleaf, Kaba X-10.  Security Level 1s, 2s and 3s total approximately 
350. 

 

Respiratory Masks:  Employees currently use the CBRNF12B filter cartridge.  The 
usage rate is as needed for operational response.  Mask and operational filter are not 

used for training.  Item stays intact unless real event.   

 
Helicopter Parts, Fuel, Supplies and Outside Maintenance:  See response to #94.    

OEM maintenance manuals are not releasable.  Aircraft Maintenance Status Sheets 

are not releasable. 
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Since this is a cost reimbursable contract, does DOE 

intend for bidders to use the historical data as a “plug” 

number or will DOE provide greater detail for the items 
listed? If a plug number, how should they be allocated in 

the Excel cost tables? 

128.  L-7a Consolidated Direct 
Cost Schedules –

Excluding Prescribed 

Personnel Labor 

 Section L-6 Cost Proposal Worksheets – Amend 0002 is 
showing WBS C.2.1 tab but in Section L-7a Consolidated 

Direct Cost Schedules –Excluding Prescribed Personnel 

Labor Amendment 0002 the P.W.S C.2.1 is missing from 
all tabs: Direct Labor, Materials, Equipment, Major Subs, 

Other Subs, Travel, Relocation, and Other Direct Cost. 

Considering the directions provided with instruction #1 
and #3 in the Additional Instructions tab: 

 

1.  Each WBS should roll cumulatively to the higher tiered 
WBS level.  

3.  The Total Values by WBS shall reconcile to the values 

in the associated cost element line item in the respective 
Section L, Attachment L-6 Cost Worksheets. 

 

Will DOE provide revised Section L-7a Consolidated 
Direct Cost Schedules –Excluding Prescribed Personnel 

Labor to include P.W.S C.2.1 in all tabs? 

DOE will amend Attachment L-7 of the RFP to include P.W.S C.2.1  

129.  L-11 Other Direct Costs Tab "Other 
Costs" 

L-11 under "Other Direct Costs" identifies "Helicopter 
Parts, Fuel, Supplies and Outside Maintenance". For 

costing purposes, can DOE please provide information on 

what "outside maintenance" consists of that our personnel 
would not be directly responsible for performing? 

The helicopters are Government Furnished Property which is assigned to the 
contractor. The contractor is responsible for all maintenance performed.   

 

Maintenance that has been performed by off-site vendors includes engine overhaul 
and transmission overhauls, avionics, rotary blade repair.  

130.  Acquisition 

Website 

Site Security Plan Documents 

Library 

Section L, Two different portions of section L require 

offerors to develop detailed information based upon 

approved security plans: 
Section L.1(b) (page L-18) States: 

Protective Force (PF) Operations. The offeror’s proposal 

shall describe its technical approach to Protective Force 
Operations in accordance with the contract requirements in 

the PWS section C.1 – Protective Force. The technical 

approach shall include detailed information regarding the 
approach to: 

• Perimeter Protection 

• Communications, Command and Alarm Centers 
• Law Enforcement, Canine Operations and Criminal 

Investigations 

• Facilities Protection – Protection up to Category I 
Special Nuclear Material (SNM) 

• Special Operations – Special Response Team (SRT) and 

Aviation Operations 
• Material Transportation Security and Coordination 

And 

The information contained in the RFP is sufficient for offerors to develop their 

proposal.  Site security plans at SRS are classified documents and will not be 

released. 
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L.20(a)(1) (page L.20) “The PF services at the SRS must 

be performed in accordance with existing approved plans 

and procedures. The plans and procedures mandate that 
certain activities be performed in areas of the site by a 

number of “prescribed” personnel. An Offeror has no 

flexibility in determining how these services are to be 
performed or the number of personnel performing these 

activities.” 

All offerors do not have access to approved security plans. 
It is noted that the Hanford Missional Essential Security 

Contract (which includes protective force operations) 

solicitation provided access to numerous Hanford security 
plans including: HNF-55230, Rev. 1 2015 Hanford Site 

Security Plan, Design Basis Threat Implementation 

Planning Timeline (no document number), HNF-55230, 
Rev. 1 -2015 Hanford Site Security Plan. All of these 

plans are Controlled Unclassified Information (CUI). 

a. Question – In order to be responsive to the requirements 
of the solicitation and be sure costs are accurately 

captured, can the government provide the approved 

security plans and procedures on which the approved 
protection strategies are based? 

131.  Acquisition 

Website 

Master Property List Documents 

Library 

Section C, Page C-5, Item C.0.4, Can DOE provide a list 

of items considered Contractor property versus 
Government-owned Real and Personal Property? 

A redacted version of the Master Property List has been added to the Documents 

Library on the SRS Security Acquisition Website. 

132.  Q&A Posting #1 Question #9 page 3 Would DOE reconsider the response to Q&A #9 that 

prohibits sub contracting  protective force elements.  As a 
service-disabled veteran-owned small business of which 

specialty protective force services is our core, this 

direction limits our participation to provide meaningful 
work. 

Due to the security requirements at SRS, PF personnel and Aviation Operations 

(pilots) shall not be subcontracted.  See response to #90. 
 

133.  Q&A Posting 2 

response #63, L-

11 

Proficiency Payments  Per answer to Question 63” The provided historical labor 

rates include proficiency payments, physical fitness 

reimbursements and other payments stipulated by the 
CBA” but Amended Section L-11 “Other Cost“ tab, row 

43 is showing TACTCAL PROFICIENCY amounts 

included in the Other Direct Cost.  Can DOE please 
confirm that these payments are included in the labor rates 

provided in Section L-11 Amendment 0002 and should not 

be separately priced in the Attachment L-7 Other Direct 
Costs tab? 

The provided historical labor rates include the proficiency pay stipulated by the 

CBAs.  DOE will amend Attachment L-11 Other Costs tab of the RFP. 

134.  Site Tour Patrols N/A During the tour it was mentioned that random patrols 

monitor the Savannah River Research Campus (owned by 
Aiken County).  Do PF patrol any other non-federal 

government facilities? 

Yes – Law Enforcement conducts random Patrols of Three Rivers Landfill which is 

leased to Aiken Country but is located within the Savanah River Site (SRS) off U.S. 
Highway 125.  Law Enforcement also conducts random patrols of the Savannah 

River Ecology Laboratory Conference Center just off U.S. Highway 275.  

Additionally, Law Enforcement conducts random patrols of that portion of U.S. 
Highway 125 that runs through the SRS as well as portions of U.S. Highway 278 

bordering SRS.  
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135.  Site Tour Secure Comparted 

Information Facilities 

N/A In the past SRS has operated Secure Comparted 

Information Facilities (SCIF).  Are there any 

prescribed/non-prescribed positions associated with 
alarms/response for SCIF(s)? 

The PF conduct random security patrols and respond to alarms.  The PF respond to 

resolve the alarm upon alarm activation.  

136.  Site Tour Vehicle Inspections N/A During the tour, POV and government vehicle inspection 

policy and procedures were explained.  What are the 
policy and procedures for commercial vehicles? 

Commercial vehicles are inspected by PF and Canine on entry.  Commercial 

vehicles are subject to random inspections on exit. 

137.  Site Tour Site Tour Script N/A During the tour, 3 CAS’s and a PAC were mentioned.  

Which areas host a CAS? 

That information is not releasable to the public.  

138.  Site Tour Rail Shipments of 
SNM 

Site Tour During the tour the receipt of spent fuel (special nuclear 
material) via railcar was discussed. Is there a requirement 

for protective force coordination and inspection at the port 

of shipment, port of entry and during transit, cask storage 
and offload at SRS? And if so, can DOE provide any 

historic and/or expected rail shipment frequency 

information? 

The contractor is involved in the coordination of spent fuel shipments. The PF 
perform inspections upon receipt at the site. There are no PF inspection duties 

required at the port of entry or during transit.  

 
The number of rail shipments in not releasable.   

139.  Site Tour Canine Veterinarian 
Services 

  Can DOE please confirm that we heard correctly during 
the site tour that canine veterinarian services are provided 

by DOD, and the cost for those services are billed directly 

to DOE, therefore, those costs are not to be factored into 
"Other Direct Costs"? 

See response to #86 above. 

140.  Amendment 

0002, L.22(f) 

Proposed Schedule  Considering PrimaVera is a government-owned computing 

infrastructure and access will be provided after award, can 
DOE clarify if the hard copy and working file of a 

resource loaded schedule (utilizing the Oracle’s Primavera 

P6 Enterprise Project Portfolio Management© software) 
specified in section L-22 (f) can it be provided during the 

transition period? 

DOE will amend L.22(f) of the RFP to remove the requirement to use Oracle’s 

Primavera P6 Enterprise Project Portfolio Management Software.  The information 
requested by L.22(f) is to be provided with the offeror’s proposal. 

141.  Amendment 
0002, L-11 

Labor Rates & FTEs 
and Other Cost 

Information 

Attachment 
L-11 

Amend 0002.xlsx Section L-11 tab Rates & FTEs Non-
Prescribed column I lists the headcount by support group 

subcategory.  Support Group F lists 20 positions but shows 

only a headcount of 19 in the 20 listed positions.  Is the 
additional position a person performing more than one 

function or is the number of 19 people incorrect?  If the 

number is incorrect, which other subgroup is overstated by 
1 and does this impact Table L.1“Prescribed & Non-

Prescribed FTEs” in section L? 

DOE will amend Attachment L-11 Non-Prescribed Personnel and Table L-1 of the 
RFP to correct.   

142.  Amendment 

0002, L-11 

Labor Rates & FTEs 

and Other Cost 

Information 

Attachment 

L-11 

Amend 0002.xlsx tab Rates & FTEs Non-Prescribed 

column C lists the headcount by title.  Column I has a 

summary by subgroup and column H has the titles but 

does not provide the current headcount by position or 

PWS/WBS elements.  Not having this information allows 
the incumbent contractor to have a significant advantage in 

knowing how each title is broken down into the 

PWS/WBS Sections listed in Section L Table L.1 
“Prescribed & Non-Prescribed FTEs”.  Can you please 

provide the breakdown of headcount by title for each 

DOE will amend Attachment L-11 of the RFP to include headcount by labor title. 
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support group by title listed on tab Rates & FTEs Non-

Prescribed? 

143.  Amendment 
0002, L-11,   

L.22(h), Table L-

1  

Table L-1 
"Prescribed" & "Non-

Prescribed" FTEs 

Attachment 
L-11 and 

Page L-32 

Amendment 0002 updated L.22(h), Table L-1 to remove 
C.2 Personnel Security, which included 2 non-prescribed 

personnel and moved to other PWS elements.  Can you 

please identify on Section L-11 Labor Rates FTEs and 
Other Cost Information amend002, the change in labor 

categories and support groups?   L-11 Labor Rates FTEs 

and Other Cost Information amend002 lists Personnel 
Security Analyst in Support Group D and Personnel 

Security Officer in Support Group F.  Were these positions 

previously part of C.2 and now that they are removed, 
should they be removed from Group D and Group F? 

DOE will amend Attachment L-11 of the RFP to include more detail and 
clarification.  Attachment L-11 labor positions have not changed; headcounts have 

been revised for the Non-Prescribed Personnel (Not Subject to CBA).  The labor 

positions were not removed from Group D and Group F.     

144.  Amendment 

0002,  L-11 

Labor Rates & FTEs 

and Other Cost 

Information 

Attachment 

L-11 

 Amend 0002 Section L-11 Spreadsheet Labor Rates FTEs 

and Other Cost Information combined Support Group H 

and Support Group I.  Would DOE provide the rationale 
behind this revision? 

Support Groups H and I were erroneously combined in Amendment 002.  DOE will 

amend Attachment L-11 of the RFP to maintain the groupings with headcount for 

information. 

 


